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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Paradip East Quay Coal Terminal Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Paradip East Quay Coa! Terminal Private Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the statement of Profit and Loss including the statement of other comprehensive
income, the cash flows statement and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial

statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), as amended, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its

profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under sub-section {10) of
Section 143 of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements
for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our

description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the
responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report, including in relation
to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Accuracy and completeness of disclosure of related party transactions and compliance with the provisions of Act (as described in
note 30 of the financial statements)

We identified the accuracy and completeness of | Our procedures in relation to the disclosure of related party transactions included

disclosure of related party transactions as setoutin | the following:
respective notes to the financial statements as a | a. We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested operating

key audit matter due to: effectiveness of the controls related to capturing of related party

- the significance of transactions with related transactions and management’s process of ensuring all transactions and

parties during the year ended March 31, 2024. balances with related parties a isglosed in the financial
statements. Q\P&’-E ﬂfs o
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter
- Related party transactions are subject to the | b. We obtained an understanding of the Company'’s policies and procedures in

compliance requirement under the Companies respect of evaluating arms-length pricing and approval process by the audit
Act 2013. committee and the board of directors.

c. We agreed the amounts disclosed with underlying documentation and read
relevant agreements, evaluation of arms-length by management, on a
sample basis, as part of our evaluation of the disclosure.

d. We assessed management evaluation of compliance with the provisions of
Section 177 and Section 188 of the companies Act 2013.

e. We evaluated the disclosures through reading statutory information, books
and records and other documents obtained during the course of our audit.

f.  We evaluated the disclosures through reading of statutory information,
books and records and other documents obtained during the course of our
audit.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Company’s Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in sub-section (5) of Section 134 of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair

view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under clause (i} of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of managements and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation
of financial statement and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the

Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the b and belief were necessary

. ;@Jm@
a}\(,’ML A_|, \;I\?*
(* ‘kFRNHUgﬁ 4 JT{'J

L2

%ﬁ‘fﬁc‘éoﬁ‘y 30f101Pacge

for the purposes of our audit.




In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph (i) {vi) below on reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of cash flow and the
statement of changes in equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of sub-section (2)

of Section 164 of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the remuneration to the whole-time director of the Company is paid by the Holding Company.
Accordingly, the provision of Section 197 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

. The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in paragraph (b)
above and paragraph (i) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11 (g} of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule (11) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position in financial statement - Refer
Note 29 (A) to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material

foreseeable losses; and

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the

Company.

iv. {a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from boriowed funds ur shdre premitum or any other sources ot Kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are either material
either individually or in aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) by or on t;ehalf of the Funding Parties or provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of

the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

rcumstances, nothing
d (ii) of Rule 11(e),

(c)  Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and geqn
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v. The Company has not declared and paid dividend during the year.

vi. As more fully described in note 43(xii) to the financial statements, based on our examination which included test checks, the
Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same was operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except
that, audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data in the underlying database and in the application when using
certain privileged access rights. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail

feature being tampered with in respect of the accounting software.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W
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Arpita T Gadhia 5 Rty
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M. No. 177483 EREDACCOY
Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) for this document is: 24177483BKDHZW5274
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 02, 2024
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Paradip

East Quay Coal Terminal Private Limited of even date

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account and records examined by
us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of property, plant and equipment in a phased manner
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
program, certain property, plant and equipment were physically verified by the management during the year. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee, and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (i) (c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

{(d)  The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets during
the year.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are
pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and Rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management during the year and,
in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by Management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed
on physical verification of inventory by the Management, as compared to book records were not material and have been
appropriately dealt with in the books of account. No discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory
were noticed in respect of such physical verification.

(b) During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate from
banks and financial institutions and accordingly, the question of our commenting on whether the quarterly returns or
statements are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company does not arise.

(iii)  The Company has not made investmentin, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans and advances in nature of loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships, or other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3 {iii) (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and () of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv)  The Company has complied with the provisions of the Section 185 of the Act in respect of grant of loans and providing guarantees
and securities, as applicable. The provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of the loans given, guarantees given or securities
provided are not applicable to the Company, since it is engaged in business of providing infrastructural facilities. The Company has
not made any invesliients dulig the yuat. Aceordingly, compliance under Section 186 (1) ot the Act in respect of investment made
during the year is not applicable to the Company.

(v)  The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within
the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules made thereu nder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi)  We have broadly reviewed the records maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed by Central Government for
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed
cost records have been maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
determining whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including goods and services
tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. No undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the da became payable

{b)  There are no dues of sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, goods and service ta




(viti)

(ix)

(x)

(i)

(xii)

(xiii)

{xiv)

{xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 {viii) of the Order is

not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

(c) The Company has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (ix) (c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

{(d)  The Company has not obtained any short-term loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (ix) (d) is not
applicable to the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, the question of our commenting on
whether the Company taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures does not arise.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, the question of our commenting on
whether the Company has not raised loans during the period on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures
or associate companies does not arise.

(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (x} (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (x) {b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) No material fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by cost auditor/secretarial auditor
or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

(c) No whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, the reporting under clause
3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

{b)  The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under audit have been
considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with Directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, reporting

under clause 3 {xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934} are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any non-banking financial / housing finance activities. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3
{xvi} (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) We have been informed by the management that as at March 31, 2024 as per the definition of Group under Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016, there is one Core Investment Company (CIC) which is registered and four CICs
which are not required to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India, forming part of the promoter group.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xviii) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note 37 to the financial statements,
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying a{ﬁiﬁa'n
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evi

r knowledge of the
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come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities failing due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)  The requirements of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR} contribution under section 135 of the Act is not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xx) (a) & (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi}  The reporting under clause 3 (xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial statements. Accordingly,
no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W m—

Arpita T Gadhia
M. No. 177483
Unique Document Identification Number {(UDIN) for this document is : 24177483BKDHZW5274
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 02, 2024
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under Clause (i) of sub-section (3) of Section
143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Paradip East Quay Coal Terminal Private Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the
institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under sub-section (10) of Section 143 of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal

financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Financial statements

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statemenis is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W

=

Arpita T Gadhia
M. No. 177483
Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) for this document is : 24177483BKDHZW5274
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 02, 2024
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PARADIP EAST QUAY COAL TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024
CIN : U74999MH2016PTC280001
R in lakhs
ASSETS
MNon-Curren ets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 527.25 606.10
Right-of-Use Assets 4 2,358.25 2,457.55
Other Intangible Assets 5 93,134.32 98,633.63
Intangible Assets Under Development 6 72.26 36.69
Income Tax Asset{Net) 18 838.51 456.45
Deferred Tax Asset {Net) 18 4,500.35 4,659.60
(Other Non-Current Assets 12 653.41 987.19
Tatal Non-Current Assets 1.02,084.35 1,07,837.22
Current Assets
Inventories 7 449.30 195.72
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 9 1,149.54 897.60
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 580.01 1,912.17
Bank Balances Other Than Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 8,417.75 -
Other Financial Assets 8 131.23 5.35
Other Current Assets 12 10.764.94 14,314.13
Total Current Assets 21,492.77 17,324.97
TOTAL ASSETS 1,23,577.12 1,25,162.20
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 13 25,760.31 25,760.31
Other Equity 14 {2,088.58) (3,410.42)
Total Equity 23,671.73 22,349.89
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 15 88,329.78 88,165.49
Lease Liabilities 4 2,927.29 | 2,914.81
Provisions 17 22.85 5.91
Total Non-Current Liabilities | 91.279.92 91,086.21
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 21 - 650.00
Lease liabilities 4 345 7.96
Trade Payables 19
Total Outstanding,Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 114.75 216.65
Total Qutstanding,Dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 4,231.68 4,500.16
Other Financial Liabilities 16 2,705.68 5,149.73
QOther Current Liabilities 20 1,562.34 1,178.48
Provisions 17 7.57 23.12
Total Current Liabilities 8,625.47 11,726.08
Total Liabilities 99,905.39 1,02,812.30
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1.22.577.12 1.25.162.20
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our attached report of even date
For Shah Gupta and Co. of Directors |
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 109574W
S
o.dl’),,/ Prasad Uday Rane Devki Nandan
e &\ Whole Time Director 1 Director
NIN - NRAITNRA NIN - NARR9IAIT
Arpita T Gadhia oy MUMEAI q O_J./"/
Partner * | FRN : 109574W a i - ors"
M. No: 177483 .
UDIN : 24177483BKDHZW5274 mit Vallecha Sushma Chauhan
Place : Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Date : May 02, 2024 PAN: AKOPV6035G M.No: A22134




INCOME

Revenue from Operations
Other ncome

Total Income

EXPENSES

Operating Expenses

Employes Bensfits Expensz

Finance Costs

Depraciation and Amortisstion Exponse
Other Expenses

Total Expanses

Prafitf{Loss) Before Tax

Tax Expense

Current Tax

Deferred Tax

Adjustment of Taxes relating to Previous Year
Profit/(Loss) for the Year

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year
(i) items that will not be classified to profit or loss
{a) Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
(ii) Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to profit or Loss
Total Other Comprehensive (Loss) for the year

Total Comprehensive Income /{Loss) for the Year

Earnings per equity share

{Face value of equity share of X 10 each)
Basic {in X)

Diluted (in X}

PARADIP EAST QUAY COAL TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024

X in I {except EPS

22 36,105.17 23,851.29
23 721.67 869.40
36,826.84 24,720.69
24 19,218.27 14,449.57
25 836.99 1,095.25
% 8,679.43 8,759.76
27 7,242.34 7,200.94
28 683.87 569.31
36,660.90 32,074.83
165.94 (7.354.14)
18 (108.39) 241.87
18 160.54 (2,451.67)
18 E 14.00
113.791 (5,158.34)
(4.66) E
1.30 =
(3.36) z
110.43 (5,158.34
004 (2.00)
33
0.04 (2.00)

The accompanyirig notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

For Shah Gupta and Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 109574W

>
Arpita T Gadhi MUMBAI
parcnee FRN : 108574W | &
M. No: 177483

UDIN : 24177483BKDHZW5274
Place : Mumbai
Date : May 02, 2024

d of

Prasad Uday Rane
Whole Time Director
DIN : 08427066

A

Chief Financial Officer
PAN: AKOPV6035G

Direct

Dawiti Nandan
Director
DIN : 06693431

Company Secretary
M.No: A22134




PARADIP EAST QUAY COAL TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2024

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL _

Balance as at 1st April, 2022 25,760.31
Changas in equity share capital during the year .
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 25,760.31
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 2576031
B) OTHER EQUITY

2 in lakhs.

{2.753.59)

Balance as at 01st April, 2022 (2,753.59)
Loss for the year (5,158.34) - {5,158.34)
Securities premium - - 4,501.50 4.501.50
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 17.911.92) - 4,501.50 {3,410.42)
Profit for the year 113.79 . - 113.79
ESOP reserve transferred from PTPL = 807.96 - 807.96
Transfer to retained earnings after exercise of options 471 89 (471 89) . -
Other Comprehensive (loss) for the year, net off income tax (3.36) - - {3.36)
Recognition of Shared Based Payments - 403.45 = 403.45 |
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 {7.329.60) 739.52 4,501.50 (2.088.56}
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our attached report of even date
For Shah Gupta and Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 109574W
Fay

Prasad Uday Rane Devki Nandan

Whole Time Director Director

DIN : 08427066 DIN : 06693431
Arpita T Gadhia F.o
Partner 9 QJ..)*/'
M. No: 177483 f ;:‘“1 ~ o /
UDIN : 24177483BKDHZW5274 Villecha Sushma Chauhan
Place : Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Date : May 02, 2024 PAN: AKOPV6035G M.No: A22134

|




PARADIP EAST QUAY COAL TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2024
[A] Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 16594 (7,354.14)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amaortisation Expense 7,24234 7.200.94
Finance Costs 8,67943 8,759.76
Interest Income (223 36) (73.22)
Share Based Payment Expense | 1,211.41 ]
| Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes | L7005 dE &533.37\
Adjustments far: ]
Decrease in Trade Receivables |251.95) 153441
Decrease in Other Assets 358255 G75.44
{Increase) in Inventaries {253.58) {185,73)
(Decrease) in Trade Payables (370.38) {1.404.09)
Increase in Other payables [1,78%.83] 868V
Increase in Provisions (380.67) 2503
Cash Generated in Operating Activities 17,611.91 mknu.uf
Income Taxes Paid {Net of Refunds) (273.65]
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities [A} 1733835 9,4
(B) Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property,Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets {including Under Development, :
Capital Advances and Capital Creditors ) (1,196.20) 12,820.48}
Bank Deposits not considered as Cash and Cash equivalent {Net) [8,417.75) 1390105
Interest Received 08.69 73.22
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities {8] 11,366.201|
[€] Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Non-Current borrowings 493,58/
Repayments of Current Borrowings [650.00) (673.64)
Repayment of Lease Obligations |262.40) (257.25)
Interest Paid [8,352.75) {8337.11)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities {C} R T-CR T 18,754 48}
Met (Decrease) in Cash and Bank Balances [A+B+C] L3321 {685.83)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year 1,912.17 2,601.,00
o Citah and Cash Equivalents it End of the Year Spa.o 1,912.17
Nates
(a) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7}- Statement of Cash Flaw
(b) Cash and Cash Equivalent Comprise of
R in lakhs
Particulars As at As at
15t March 7074 315t March, 2023
Balances with Banks (Refer Note:10)
In Current Accounts 100.01 306.99
4R0 0N 160518
Cash 550,01 1,012.17]
(£} Recaciliation forming part af of Cash flow % in lakhs
Fartleulars As at Cash Flows{Net) Mo caph chappes As at
J1at Magrch, 2023 Otherss I_:hmm.h.znu_
Non-Current Borrowings B8,165.49 164.28 88,329.77
Current Borrowing 650.00 -
Lease Ohligati 292277 7.96 253073
Total Lishilities from Financing itl 91,738.26 172.24 91,260.51
Particulars As at Cash Fl . \ Non cash changes Asat
31st March, 2022 TomeTEy Others# 315t March, 2023
Non-Current Rarrawines A7 50A B3 A93 54 TRINR ART1A5 49
Current Borrowing 1,323.69 (673.69) - 650.00
Lease Obligetion 2.910,78 1357.25) 269.25 2,922.77
Total Liahilities from Financing Activities 51,743.20 A (437.38) 432.33 91,738.26
#Other changes with respect to barrawings adjustment for effectve Interest
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
Ay per our attached report of even date
For Shah Gupta and Co. ¥
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Mo: 109574W
Prasad Qday Rane i Nandan
gz, Whole Time Director Director
DIN : 08427066 DIN : 06693431
Arpita T Gadhia N
Partner =
M. No: 177483
UDIN : 24177483BKDHZWS274 Sushma Chauhan
Place : Mumbar Chirf Finanrial Dfficer Campany Secretary
Date : May 02, 2024 PAN: AKOPVE035G M.No: A22134




PARADIP EAST QUAY COAL TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. GENERAL INFROMATION

The financial statements comprise financial statements of PARADIP EAST QUAY COAL
TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) for the period March 31, 2024. The
Company is a private limited company, domiciled in India and incorporated in under the
provision of Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is
located at 5A, Jindal Mansion Dr. G Deshmukh Marg, Mumbai — 400 026.

The Company is engaged in developing and operating mechanized modern ports and
Marine transport at suitable locations over the country to support JSW Group in addition to
catering to third party cargo handling requirement. Apart from this, the Company is also
planning to undertake various logistic related activities like Shipping, Roads, Railways,
Marine Infrastructures, etc.

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

L Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the company comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
and 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and
the statement of Cash Flows for the year ended as on that date and material accounting
policies and explanatory notes (together hereinafter referred to as “Financial statements”).

The financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) prescribed under
the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) to the extent notified. presentation and disclosures
requirement of Division Il of revised Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013, (Ind AS
Compliant Schedule Ill), as applicable to financial statement.

These financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors on May 02, 2024

IL. Basis of Preparation and Presentation.
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the historical cost
basis and on an accrual basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities (including
derivative instruments), defined benefit plan’s — plan assets and equity settled share-based
payments measured at fair value at the end of each reporting year.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using anaother valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the company takes in account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for




PARADIP EAST QUAY COAL TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determine on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS
102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, fair value of plan assets
within scope the of Ind AS 19 and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Statements comprises of Paradip East Quay Coal Terminal Pvt Ltd., being the entities
that it controls.

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%) and all values are rounded to
the nearest Lakh (% 00,000), except when otherwise indicated

Foreign Currencies

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is determined on the basis of
the primary economic environment in which it operates. The functional currency of the
Company is Indian National Rupee (INR).

Transactions and Balances

All transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies
using the prevailing exchange rates on the date of such transactions. All monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at
the closing exchange rate at the end of each reporting year. All non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. All foreign currency
differences are generally recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except for non-
monetary items denominated in foreign currency and measured based on historical cost, as
they are not translated.




PARADIP EAST QUAY COAL TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Iv.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade
discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the
asset ready for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets
and any expected costs of decommissioning. Major shut-down and overhaul expenditure is
capitalised as the activities undertaken improves the economic benefits expected to arise
from the asset.

Major overhaul costs are depreciated over the estimated life of the economic benefit derived
from the overhaul. The carrying amount of the remaining previous overhaul cost is charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss if the next overhaul is undertaken earlier than the
previously estimated life of the economic benefit.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. Property, Plant
and Equipment which are significant to the total cost of that item of Property, Plant and
Equipment and having different useful life are accounted separately

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in the assets under Capital work in
progress. At the point when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost
of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
and depreciation commences. Costs associated with the commissioning of an asset and
any obligatory decommissioning costs are capitalised where the asset is available for use
but incapable of operating at normal levels revenue (net of cost) generated from production
during the trial period is capitalised.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
dassel and Is recoynised In Stalement of Profll and Loss

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production, supply
or administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciable
amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its
estimated residual value. Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than freehold land and properties under construction) less their residual values over
their useful lives, using straight-line method as per the useful lives and residual value
prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except in case of the following class




PARADIP EAST QUAY COAL TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

of assets wherein useful lives are determined based on technical assessment made by a
technical expert engaged by the management taking into account the nature of assets, the
estimated usage of assets, the operating conditions of the assets, anticipated technological
changes, in order to reflect the actual usage

The company has estimated the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its certain
fixed assets based on assessment made by experts and management estimates.

Assets Estimated useful lives
Plant and Machinery 2-18 Years

Office equipment 3-20 Years

Computer equipment 3-6 Years

Furniture and fixtures 5-15 Years

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

The company has policy to expense out the assets which is acquired during the year and
value of such assets is below Rs. 5000.

Intangible Assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting year, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated

impairment losses if any.

The cost of intangible assets having finite lives, which are under development and before
ready for its intended use, are disclosed as ‘Intangible Assets under development.

Useful lives of intangible assets
Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:

Assets Estimated useful lives
Computer Software 3 -5 Years

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no further economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gain/loss on de-recognition are recognised in statement of
proflt and loss.




PARADIP EAST QUAY COAL TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

VL.

Port concession rights arising from Service Concession

The comapny recognizes port concession rights as “Intangible Assets” arising from a
service concession arrangement, in which the grantor controls or regulates the services
provided and the prices charged, and also controls any significant residual interest in the
infrastructure such as property, plant and equipment, even if the infrastructure is existing
infrastructure of the grantor or the infrastructure is constructed or purchased by the
company as part of the service concession arrangement. The company acts as the operator
in such arrangement. Such an intangible asset is recognized by the company at cost which
is fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the construction services
delivered and is capitalized when the project is complete in all respects and the comapny
receives the completion certificate from the authorities as specified in the concession

agreement.

Port concession rights also include certain property, plant and equipment which are
reclassified as intangible assets in accordance with Appendix A of Ind AS 115 ‘Service

Concession Arrangement’.
These assets are amortized based on the lower of their useful lives or concession period.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of port concession rights are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the assets is de-recognized.

The estimated period of port concession arrangement ranges within a period of 25-50 years.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets

The company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
any Property, Plant and Equipment, and Other Intangible Assets or group of assets, called
Cash Generating Units (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an
asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the
assets. The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has
been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount




PARADIP EAST QUAY COAL TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

VILI.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use
are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services
are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services
having regard to the terms of the contract. If the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated having regard to various relevant factors including historical trend
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Compensation towards shortfall in offtake
are recognised on collection or earlier when there is reasonable certainty to expect ultimate
collection.

Revenue from port operations services/ multi-model service including cargo handling and
storage are recognized on proportionate completion method basis based on services
completed till reporting date. Revenue on take-or-pay charges are recognised for the
quantity that is difference between annual agreed tonnage and actual quantity of cargo
handled.

Interest on delayed payments leviable as per the relevant contracts are recognised on actual
realisation or accrued based on an assessment of certainty of realization supported by
acknowledgement from customers.

The amount recognised as revenue is exclusive of goods & services tax where applicable.

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered and to the extent that it has an
unconditional contractual right to receive cash or other financial assets (i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services
to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment
is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Company performs under the contract including Advance received from Customer.

V%
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PARADIP EAST QUAY COAL TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

VIl

IX.

Other Income

Other income is comprised primarily of interest income, mutual fund income, dividend,
exchange gain/ loss. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. Unrealised gain/loss on mutual unit
accounted in Statement of Profit and Loss bases mark to market basis and realised gain/loss
accounted on the redemption basis.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive
payment has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Leases
The company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract.
That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period

of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as lessor

Leases for which the company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases.
Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising
is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership transfer from the company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under
finance leases are recorded as receivables at the comapny’s net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the company’s net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the company regularly reviews the estimated unguaranteed
residual value and applies the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109, recognizing an
allowance for expected credit losses on the lease receivables. Finance lease income is
calculated with reference to the gross carrying amount of the lease receivables, except for
credit impaired financial assets for which interest income is calculated with reference to their
amortised cost (i.e. after a deduction of the loss allowance).

Company as lessee
The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases




PARADIP EAST QUAY COAL TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

of low-value assets. The company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e.,
the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the company is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The lease term of company’s ROU assets which comprises only Buildings varies from 3 to
30 years.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment test.

The Company accounts for sale and lease back transaction, recognising right-of-use assets
and lease liability, measured in the same way as other right-ofuse assets and lease liability.
Gain or loss on the sale transaction is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognises lease liabilities measured
at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term and are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest (using the effective interest method) and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease
payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
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to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases
(i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases that are considered of low value (i.e., below Rs. 50,000).
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are
consumed.

Most of the contracts that contains extension terms are on mutual agreement between both
the parties and hence the potential future rentals cannot be assessed. Certain contracts
where the extension terms are unilateral are with unrelated parties and hence there is no
certainty about the extension being exercised.

The comapny uses weighted average incremental borrowing rate for lease liabilities
measurement.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in
which they are incurred.

The company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as the
actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing during the year less any interest income
earned on temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets, to the extent that an entity borrows funds specifically for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset. If any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an
entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings. In
case if the company borrows generally and uses the funds for obtaining a qualifying asset,
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation are determined by applying a capitalisation rate to
the expenditures on that asset.

Government Grant
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the company
will comply with the conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received.
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Government grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the company recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate or when performance obligations are met.

Government grants relating to tangible fixed assets are treated as deferred income and
released to the Statement of profit and loss over the expected useful lives of the assets
concerned.

Employee Benefits
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits:

Defined contribution plans:
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions

Defined benefit plans:
For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined
using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end
of each annual reporting year. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the
effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets
(excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the statement of financial position with a
charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the year in which they occur.
Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in
retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Actuarial valuations are being
carried out at the end of each annual reporting period for defined benefit plans. Past service
cost is recognised in profit or loss in the year of a plan amendment or when the company
recognizes corresponding restructuring cost whichever is earlier. Net interest is calculated
by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs
are categorised as follows:

e Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains

and losses on curtailments and settlements);
e Net interest expense or income; and
e Re-measurement

The company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in
the line item ‘Employee benefits expenses. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for
as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the statement of financial position represents
the actual deficit or surplus in the company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting
from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the
form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer
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withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related
restructuring costs.

The company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service
with the Company at the time of resignation/ superannuation. The gratuity is paid @ 15 days
salary for each completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave in the year the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the company in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Share Based Payment Arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the
determination of the fair value of equity- settled share-based transactions are set out in Note
39

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity- settled share-based payments is
expensed on a straight- line basis over the vesting period, based on the company’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the
end of each reporting year, the company revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

The Company has created an Employee Benefit Trust for providing share-based payment to
its employees. The company uses the Trust as a vehicle for distributing shares to employees
under the employee remuneration schemes. The company treats Trust as its extension and
shared held by the Trust are treated as treasury shares.

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognized at cost and
deducted from Equity. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the company’s own equity instruments. Any difference between the
carrying amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognized in other equity. Share
options exercised during the reporting year are satisfied with treasury shares.
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Tax Expense

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

Current tax is the amount of expected tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year
as determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income
Tax Act, 1961. The company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwiill.
Recognize of Deferred Tax Liability (DTL)/ Deferred Tax Asset (DTA) for taxable temporary
differences in cases where the initial recognition of an asset or liability results in equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, except where the company is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting year
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future
economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as
a deferred tax asset if there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income
tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is probable
that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the company.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting year.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Current and Deferred Tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are relating to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and

liabilities on a net basis.

Inventories
Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing

for obsolescence, if any, Cost is determined by the weighted average cost method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Cost of inventories includes cost of
purchase price, cost of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their

present location and condition.

Financial Instruments

Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through Statement
of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit and loss are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

a) Investments and other financial assets:

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus,
in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset.
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Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, which is the
date on which the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Classification of Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI) and fair value
through profit and loss.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated at FVTPL:

i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and ]

ii) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The company makes such
election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable. The equity instruments which are strategic investments and
held for long term purposes are classified as FVTOCI. If the company decides to classify an
equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to
Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.

In addition, on initial recognition, the company may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI or at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise. '
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Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting year, with
any gains and losses arising on remeasurement recognised in statement of profit and loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in statement of profit and loss incorporates any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the other income’ line item. Dividend
on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when:

> The company’s right to receive the dividends is established,

> It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividends will flow
to the entity,

» The dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and
the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

Impairment

The company applies the expected credit loss model for recognizing impairment loss on financial
assets measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade
receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and financial
guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest
rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets). The company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected
life of that financial instrumentt.

The company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit
losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls
that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not
cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.
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If the company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss
model in the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as
compared to the previous period, the Company again measures the loss allowance based on
12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit
losses. To make that assessment, the company compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the company always measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables, the company has used a practical expedient as permitted under ind AS 109. This
expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account
historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are
equally applied to debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in
other comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.
The company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current
indicators of future economic conditions, the company expects to recover the carrying amount of
these assets.

Effective Interest Method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument

and of allocating interest income over the relevant year. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exdclly discounts eslimated future cash recelpts (Including all fees and polnts pald or recelved
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter year,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and
is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.
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b) Financial Liabilities & Equity Instruments
Classification as Debt or Equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the company are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly
in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the company’s own equity instruments

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL’ or ‘other financial

liabilities’.

Initial recognition and measurement financial liabilities are recognised when the company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL:

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for
trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

> It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term;
or

> on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

> it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if:
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> such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

> the financial liability forms part of a company of financial assets or financial liabilities
or both,
which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the company’'s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

» it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS
109 permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in
accordance with Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilites at FVTPL are stated at fair value with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
the statement of Profit and Loss incorporates an interest paid on the financial liability and is
include in the statement of Profit and Loss. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value
gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognised in OCI.

The company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the company's obligations
are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other financial liabilities:

The company enters into deferred payment arrangements (acceptances) whereby overseas
lenders such as banks and other financial institutions make payments to supplier's banks for
import of raw materials and property, plant and equipment. The banks and financial institutions
are subsequently repaid by the company at a later date providing working capital benefits. These
arrangements are in the nature of credit extended in normal operating cycle and these
arrangements for raw materials are recognised as Acceptances (under trade payables) and
arrangements for property, plant and equipment are recognised as borrowings. Interest borne by
the company on such arrangements is accounted as finance cost. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities: A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. An exchange between a lender of
debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial
difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.
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Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company
or the counterparty.

Reclassification of financial assets

The company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments
and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made
only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the
business model are expected to be infrequent. The company’s senior management determines
change in the company business model as a result of external or internal changes which are
significant to the’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the
business model occurs when the company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immediately next reporting year following the change in business model. The company does not
restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Original Revised Accounting treatment
classification classification
Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification

date. Difference between previous
amortised cost and fair value is recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss.

FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes
its new gross carrying amount. EIR is
calculated based on the new gross carrying
amount.

Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification
date. Difference between previous
amortised cost and fair value is recognised
in OCI. No change in EIR due to
reclassification.

FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes
its new amortised cost carrying amount.
However, cumulative gain or loss in OCl is
adjusted against fair value. Consequently,
the asset is measured as if it had always
been measured at amortised cost.
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FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes
its new carrying amount. No other
adjustment is required.

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair
value. Cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl is reclassified to
Statement of Profit and Loss at the
reclassification date.

Provisions and Commitments

A provision is recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive), as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that
can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an obligation.

When the expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in
the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured

reliably.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized
as a finance cost.

Onerous Contracts - Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised
and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist where the company
has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract. The
unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract,
which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from
failure to fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relate directly to
the contract (i.e., both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to
contract activities).
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Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Contingent Liabilities

Disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of
amount cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks, cheque on
hand, short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less from the date of
acquisition, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at banks and on hand, short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less
and liquid investments, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. .

Statement of Cash Flow

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared using the indirect method segregating the cash flows
into operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is
reported using indirect method.

Adjusting the net profit for the effects of:
e changes during the period in inventories and operating receivables and payables,
transactions of a non-cash nature
¢ non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, and unrealised foreign currency
gains and losses etc.; and
e all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand, short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less and liquid investments, which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Earnings per Equity Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / loss after tax by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for treasury shares, bonus
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issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse
share split (consolidation of shares).

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / loss after tax as adjusted for
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes)
relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number
of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares including the treasury shares held by the company to satisfy the exercise of
the share options by the employees.

Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided

to the chief operating decision maker.

The Board of directors of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision
Maker which reviews and assesses the financial performance and makes the strategic

decisions.

Current and Non-Current Classification
The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-

current classification.
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

e Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in company normal
operating cycle; Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or

eCash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle
a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

s It is expected to be settled in company normal operating cycle;

e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

e it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or the
Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments
do not affect its classification.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

MUMBA|
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Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
management bases its estimates on historical experience and various other assumptions
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from
those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in
any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation,
uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the Financial Statements is included in the
following notes:

a. Property, plant and equipment

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of
an asset’s expected useful lives and the expected residual value at the end of its lives. The
useful lives and residual values of company's assets are determined by Management at
the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year
end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation
of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology. Such lives
are dependent upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets, and also their
likely economic lives based on various internal and external factors including relative
efficiency, the operating conditions of the asset, anticipated technological changes,
historical trend of plant load factor, historical planned and scheduled maintenance. It is
possible that the estimates made based on existing experience are different from the actual
outcomes and could cause a material adjustment to the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment.

b. Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
The company have tax jurisdictions i.e. at India. Significant judgements are involved in
determining the provision for income taxes.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. The amount of the deferred income tax assets
considered realizable, however, could change if estimates of future taxable income
changes in the future.

MAT is assessed on book profits adjusted for certain items as compared to the adjustments
followed for assessing regular income tax under normal provisions. MAT paid in excess of
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Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

regular income tax during a year can be set off against regular income taxes within a
specified period in which MAT credit arises, subject to the limits prescribed.

c. Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present
value of such obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases,
mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

d. Fair Value Measurement

When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded or disclosed in
the financial statements cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques which involve various judgements
and assumptions including the Discounted Cash Flows model. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree
of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include consideration of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

e. Impairment of Financial Assets and Non-Financial Assets

The impairment provisions for Financial Assets are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected cash loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on company’s
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period.

In case of non-financial assets, the company estimates asset’s recoverable amount, which
is higher of an assets or Cash Generating Units (CGU’s) fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use.

In Assassing valie in use, the estimated fiture cash fiows are discnnnted ta their present
value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account, if no such transactions can be identified,
an appropriate valuation model is used.

f. Contingencies
in the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other
claims against the company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of
crystalising or are very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such
liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not recognized. The cases which have been
determined as remote by the company are not disclosed.
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Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements unless
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

g. Provisions
The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability requires the application of
judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The
carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take
account of changing facts and circumstances.

XXV. Recent Accounting Pronouncements:
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifies new standards / amendments under

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. As of 31st
March 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing
standards applicable to the Company that has not been applied.
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T in lakhs

Cost/Deemed Cost
As at 01st April, 2022 10.20 19.89 35.92 28.86 94.87
Additions 7.24 314,51 14.55 235.23 571.53
Deductions - " - - .
As at 31st March, 2023 17.44 334.40 50.47 264.09 666.39
Additions - - 4.19 = 4.19
Deductions = = = = =
As at 31st March, 2024 17.44 334.40 54.65 264.09 670.58
Accumulated Depreciation and impairment =
As at 01st April, 2022 3.27 0.80 19.25 10.60 33.93
Depreciation 1.23 9.59 830 7.24 26.37
Deductions
As at 31st March, 2023 450 10.39 27.55 17.84 60.29
Depreciation 146 31,02 8.81 41.74 83.04
Deductions - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2024 5.96 41.42 36.36 59.59 143.33
Net book value
As at 31st March, 2024 11.47 292.98 18.29 204.50 527.25
As at 31st March, 2023 12.93 324.00 22.92 246.25 606.10
NOTE 4:-RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES X in lakhs
Gross carrying value
As at 01st April, 2022 2,854.73 2.854.73
Additions - -
Deductions - -
As at 31st March, 2023 - 2,854.73 2,854.73
Additions - -
Deductions - -
As at 31st March, 2024 2,854.73 2,854.73
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
As at 01st April, 2022 297.88 297.88
Depreciation 99.29 99.29
Deductions = ¥
As at 31st March, 2023 397.18 397.18
Depreciation 99.29 9929
Deductions
As at 31st March, 2024 496.47 496.47
Net book Value
As at 31st March, 2024 2,358.25 2,358.25
As at 31st March, 2023 2.457.55 2.457.55

As a part of concession agreement for development of port and related infrastructure at Odisha , the Company has been atlotted land on lease basis by Paradip Port Trust . The Company has recorded
rights at present value of future annual lease payments in the books and classified the same as lease hold land

LEASE LIABILITIES : X in Lakhs

Particulars 1A 1

As at 01st April, 2022 2,910.78

Additions

interest accrued 269.25

Lease principal payments 12.00

Lease interest payments (268.25)

As at 31st March, 2023 2,922.77

Additions

Interest accrued 270.36

Lease Interest payments (262.40)

As at 31st March, 2024 2,930.73

Breakup of lease liabilities = in lakhs
Current 345 7 9R
Non-current 2,927.29 2.914.81
Tatal 2,930.13 292217

1. Lease hold land have been taken on lease by the Company. The terms of lease rent are for the period ranging from 2017 to 2047 depending on the lease agreement with the lessor, Such leases are
renewable by mutual consent. There is na contingent rent, no sub-leases and no restrictions imposed by the lease arrangements.

2.Future Minimum Lease Payments {MLP} under leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payment are as follows:
At 31st March, 2024

Minimum Lease payments

Xin it

1,125.18 6.327.35 7.720.17 (4,789.44) 2,930.72
Fi n
inance charge allocated to future periods 271,09 1,082.64 343571 4788 a4 . :
Present Value of MLP
(3.45) 42.54 2,891.63 2,930.73 = 2,930.73

At 31st March, 2023

Minimum Lease payments
262.40 1.392.83 6,327 35 7.982.57 (5,059.80) 2,922.77
270.36 1,084.37 3,705,07 5.059.80 -
{7.96) 308.46 2,622.28 232277 = 2,822.77
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3. The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

4. The Company has recognized as rent expenses during the year(PY Nil) which pertains to short term lease/ low value asset which was not recognized as part of right-of-use asset.

NOTE 5:- OTHER INTANG!BLE ASSETS = in lakhs

Cost/Deemed Cost:

As at 01st April, 2022 1,05,770.35 1.84 1,05,772.18
Additions 2,573.60 < 2,573.60
Deduction

As at 31st March, 2023 1,08,343.95 1.84 1,08,345.79
Additions 1,556.49 4.21 1,560.70
Additions . . -
As at 31st March, 2024 1,09,900.44 6.05 1,09,906.49
Accumulated amortisation and impairment:

As at 01st April, 2022 2,636.74 0.13 2,636.87
Amortisation 7,074.68 0.61 7,075.29
Disposals

As at 31st March, 2023 9,711.42 0.74 9,712.16
Amortisation 7,059.05 0.96 7,060.01
Disposals - - =
As at 31st March, 2024 . 16,770.47 1.70 16,772.17
Net baok value

As at 31st March, 2024 93,129.98 435 93,134.32
As at 31st March, 2023 98,632.53 1.10 98,633.63

1} Amount transferred to other intangible assets during the pariod 1560.70 lakhs (FY.2573.60 |akhs}

NOTE 6:- INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT
intangible asset under development ageing as at:

As at 31st March, 2024 2 in lakhs
Projects in prograss: 7226 72.26
Projecct temporarily susperidid = = . = 2
Total 7236 : = = e
As at 31st March, 2023 X in lakhs
Projects in prograss: + 36.63 - - 36.63
Priyjecct ternporarily suspended - E - - =
Total - 36.69 - - 36.59
Notes:

1) There are no intangible assets under development where completion is overdue against original planed timelines or where estimated cost exceded its original cost as on 31st March,2024.

NOTE 7:- lnvento R in lakhs
Inventories {At Cost or Net Realizable Value which ever is lower}

Stores. Spares and Fuel 449.30 195.72
Tatal 449.30 195.72
Cost of inventory recognisid as an expense during the year ended 31st March, 2024 X 544.40 znd during the year ended 31st March, 2023 X 232.11 lakhs

NOTE 8:- OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS X in lakhs

Unsecured
Interest receivables on

-Fixed Deposits - 120.02 - 5.35
Other Receivable (refer note no.29) - 11.20 - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful balances

- 131.23 - 5.35

Notes:
Considered Good - 131.23 - 5,35

Considered Doubtful, Provided - . - .

NOTE 9;- TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade Receivables considered good - Secured 5 =
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 931.94 897.60
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - =
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss - -
Trade Recelvable credIt Impaired-unsecured - -
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss -

Unbilled Revenue 217.60 -
Total 1.149.54 897.60
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Note 1 :Ageing of trade receivables:

Within the credit period
Outstanding for following periods from due dateof payment
Less than 6 months

6 months to 1 year

1to2years

2 to 3 years

More than 3 years
217.60 - - -

1,149.54 - s

Unbilled Revenue

Total

ithin the credit period B 71.77
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than & mokths

6 months to 1 year 36.00
1to 2 years 782.84 - - -
2to3years N - - -

More than 3 years
Unbilled Revenue
Total 897.60 - - -

Note 2 - The credit period on rendering of services ranges from 1 to 30 days with or without security.
Note 3 - Refer note no. 30 for details of receivables from related parties
Note 4 - No trade or other receivable are due from directars or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person nor any trade receivables is due from firms or private

companies in which any director is partner, a directoror a member.

Note 5 - Loss allowance is estimated for disputed receivables based on assessment of each case where considered necessary.

Note & - Trade Receivables disclosed above include amounts {see above for aged analysis) that are past due at the end of the reporting period for which the Company has not recognised an allowance for
doubtful debts because there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable.

Note 7 - The Company does not generally hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances nor does it have a legal right to offset against any amounts owed by the Group to the
counterparty.

NOTE 10:- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Xin lakhs

Balances with Banks

In Current accounts 100.01 306.99
In Term Depasits accounts maturitv less than 3 month at incention 480.00 1,605.18
Total 580.01 1,912.17

NOTE 11 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i - Tinlakhs

Balances with banks
In Term Deposits with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months at inception 8,417.75
Total 8,417.75 -

NOTE 12:- OTHER ASSETS % in lakhs

Unsecured considerad good
Caplital advances

Less:Allowanace for doubtful advances . - -
{A) = = 333.78 =

Other than capital advance

Advance to Suppliers

Security Deposits

Prepayments

Indirects Tax Balances/ Receivables/Credits

Less:Allowanace tor doubttul advances - - -
B 653.41 10,764.94 653.41 14,314.13
587,

(8]
Total (A) + (B) | EEIAT|  1G,76A8% BU] 133413

Notes:

Capital Advances
Considered Good -
Cons|dered Doubtful, Provided - -
Other Advances
Considered Good
Considered Doubtful, Provided - -
Indirects Tax Balances/ Receivables/Credits - =
Other Advances .
*Utility-3ecurity Deposit Includes Electricity, Railway etc.

216.90 = 44.27

- 178.16 161.57
- 10,369.89 - 14,108.29

653.41 10,764.94 653.41 14,314.13

NOTE 13:- EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

Equity Shares of % 10/- each 31,40,00,000 31,400.00 31,40,00,000 31,400.00
31,40.00,000 31,400.00 31,40.00,000 31,400.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

Equity Shares of X 10/- each 25,76.03,065 25,760.31 25,76.03.065 25,760.31

Total 25,76,03,065 25,760.31 25,76,03,065 25,760.31
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{a) Reconciliation of the number of the shares outstanding at the nning and at the end of the year

Balance at the beginning of the year 25,76,03,065 25,760.31 25,76,03,065 25,760.31
Movement during the year - -
nce at the end of the year 25,76,03,065 25,760.31 25,76,03,065 25,760.31

{b} Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:
The Company has one class of share capital, i.e., equity shares having face value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share, In the event of liquidation, the equity
shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

c] Detalls of shareholders holding more than 5 % shares in the Company

JSW Infrastructure Limited 19,06,26,268 74.00 190626268.1 74.00
South West Port Limited 6,69,76,797 26.00 66976796.9 26.00
Total 25,76,02,065 100.00 25,76,03.065 100.00
(d] Details of shares held b oters and promoter group at the end of year:

ISW Infrastructure Limited 19,06,26,268 19,062.63 19,06.26,268 19,067 63
South West Port Limited 6,69,76,797 6,697.67 6,69,76,797 6,697.67
Total 25,76,03,065 25,760.30 25,76,03,065 25,760.30

There are no changes in the share holding partern of promoter and promoter group during the period/yaer.

(e) There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares / disinvestment.

(f) There are no bonus shares issued during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

(g) There are no shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the date of the balance sheet.

NOTE 14:- OTHER EQUITY X in Lakhs
Retained earnings (7,329.60) {7,911.92)
Other reserves
Equity settled share based payment reserve 739.52 -
Securities premium reserve 4,501.50 4,501.50
Total {2,088.58) (3,410.42)

{i) Retained Eamings:

Retained earnings are the profits that Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. Retained earnings includes re-
measurement loss/{gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. Retained earnings are free reserves available to the Company.

{ii) Security Premium Account:

{iii) Equity settled share based payment reserve:

The Company offers ESOP, under which options to subscribe for the ISW Infrastcruture Limited (Parent Company) share have been granted to certain employees and senior management. The share
based payment reserve is used to recognise the vatue of equity settled share based payments provided as part of the ESOP scheme by its Parent Company.

MOTE 15:- BORROWINGS Tin Lakhs

Usseeured Loans (st amortised cost)

Loan from related party {refer note no. 30) 89,118.00 89,118.00 650.00
Total 89,118.00 - 89,118.00 650.00
Less: Unamortised upfront fees on Borrowing {788.22) (952.51)

Total 88,329.78 - 88,165.49 650.00
Less: Current maturity of long term debt clubbed under Shart term Borrowings - - - (650.00)
Total 88,329.78 - 88.165.49 -

Xin Lakhs

Note 15.1 Deatils of Security and Terms of Repayment

Unsecured Loans (at amortised cost)

From Related Parties 89,118.00 - 89,118.00 - 9.25% 9.25% Unsecured To be repaid on or
Before 21st January

2029

Total

Less: Unamortised upfront fees on borrowings (788.22) (952.51)

Total 88.329.78 - 88.165.49 -

NOTE 16 :-OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES Tin Lakhs

Retention money for capital project 1 i 2,459.86

Payable to related party (refer Note 30) . 3731 - 1,952,18

Pavable to employees - 208.51 - -

Total - 2.705.68 - 5,149.73

MUMBA|
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Note-17 : PROVISIONS

| Pravision for Employee benefit
Gratuity (refer note-38)
Lesve Encashment (refer note-38)
Total

18.63 0.48 - =
4.22 7.09 5.91 23.12
22.85 7.57 5.91 23.12

NOTE 18:- TAXATION
Indian companies are subject to Indian income tax on a standalone basis. For each fiscal year, the entity profit and loss is subject to the higher of the regular income tax payable or the Minimum

Alternative Tax (“MAT”).Statutory incomne taxes are assessed based on book profits prepared under generally accepted accounting principles in India adjusted in accordance with the provisions of the

(Indian) Income Tax Act, 1961. Statutory income tax is charged at 25% plus a surcharge and education cess.
MAT is assessed on book profits adjusted for certain items as compared to the adjustments fallowed for assessing regular income tax under normal provisions. MAT for the fiscal year 2023-24 is charged

at 15% plus a surcharge and education cess. MAT paid in excess of regular income tax during a year can be set off against regular income taxes within a period of fifteen years succeeding the fiscal year in
which MAT credit arises subject to the limits prescribed
Income tax related to items charged or credited dir=ctly to nrafit or loss account during the year

Xin Lakhs

Current Tax:

Current income tax (a} (108.39) 241.87
Income Tax Prior year = 14.00
Tax (credit) under Minimum Alternative Tax

Current Tax (a) {108.39) 255.87
Deferred Tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences {13.62) (2,252.57)
Tax (credit) under Minimum Alternative Tax 174.15 {199.10)
Deferred Tax (b} 160.54 2,451.67}
Total Exp reported in the stat: of Profit and Loss {a+b) 52.15 {2,195.80)

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2024
A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting Profit / (Loss) before tax at the statutory income tax rate to recognised income tax expense for the period/year indicated are as follows:

X in Lakhs

Profit /(Loss) before tax 165.94 {7.354.44)
Enacted tax rate in India 28% 28%
Expected income tax expense at statutory tax rate 46,17 {2,046.00)
Tax allowances 141.00 (163,89}
Tax (credit) attributable to prior period {135.02) 14.10
Tax expense for the year 52.14 (2,195 80}
Effective income tax rate 31.42% 29.86%
Total 31.42% 29.86%

Note 1 - The Company offsets deferred tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and relates to income taxes levied by

the same tax authority.
Note 2 - The Company expects to utilise the MAT credit within a period of 15 years.
The following tabie provides the detaiis of income tax assets as on 31 March, 2024 and March 31, 2023:

Xin Lakhs

838.51 456,45

Income Tax Assets (net of provision for tax)
838.51 456.45

Total

onents of deferred tax assets / (liabilities), deductible tem

differences and unused tax losses recognised in the financial statements are as follows:

Significant com,

Deferred tax assets:

MAT credit entitlement 199.10 (174.15) = 24.94

Unused tax losses 31,383.02 (854.53) - 30,528.49

Provision for employee benefits - 7.17 1.29 8.46

Total Assets 31,582.12 {1,021.52) 1.29 30,561.89

Deferred tax liabilities:

Others 1264.99) 204.97 - {60.02)
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (26,657.53) 656.01 - {26,001.52)
Total Liabilities {26,922.52) 860.98 - {26,061.54)
Total 4,659.60 {160.54) 1.29 4,500.35
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liabilities), deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses recognised in the financial statements are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:
MAT credit entitlement 199.10 - 199.10
Unused tax losses 31.101.78 281.24 = 31.383.02
Total Assets 31,101.78 480.34 31,582.12
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets {28.683.74] 2,026.21 {26,657.53)
Others (210 11) (54 88) {264 99)
Total Liabilities {28.893.85] 1,971.33 {26.922.52]
Total 2,207.93 2,451.67 - 4,659.60
NOTE 19:-TRADE PAYABLES X in Lakhs
Total Outstanding,Due to micro enterprises and small enterprises 114.75 216.65
Total Outstanding,Due to creditors other than micro enterprises and smail enterprises
Acceptance . )

Other than Acceptance 4,231.68 4,500.16
Total 4,346.43 4,716.81
Notes:
1) Payables are normally settled within 1 to 180 days
2) Trade payzbles to related parties has been disclosed in note no. 30
Age Xin Lakhs

g of Payables:

WWithin the cradit period 8170 1,763.76 - -
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 20.72 51382 - -
1to 2 years 2.33 104.88 - -
21o 3 years - - =
Wore than 3 years 143
Ungill - 1,847.69 -
Total 114.75 4,231.68 - -

ng of Payables: Tin Lalhs
Within the credit period 149.98 2,339.18 61,18
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year . 503.77 5.48 -
1to 2 years - 279 0.01 -
2to 3 years - *
More than 3 years - - - -
Unbilled = 1.654.42 . -
Total 149.98 4,500.16 66.67 =
Disclasure relating to mico il and medium Rin Lakhs
Particulars As at A1st March, 2024 Ac at 21st March. 2023
1. Principal amount due outstanding as at end of year 114,75 216.65
2. Principal amount overdue more than 45 days = -
3. Interest due and the unpaid as at end of year - -
4. Interest paid to the supplier C B
S. Payments made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year - -
6. Interest due and payable for the period of delay - =
7. Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at end of year - -
8./ ther interest rer succeeding vears = &
Total 114.75 216.65
The company has not been provided interest for MSME vendor where the amount is in dispute with respect to contract terms and conditions.
NOTE 20:- OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES X in Lakhs
Advances from Customer - 1,189.71 - 273.07
Statutory Liabilities 372.63 905.41
Total - 1,562.34 1,178.48

NOTE 21:- CURRENT BORROWINGS

Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowing {refer Note 15)

X in Lakhs

[Total

550.00 |
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NOTE 22:- REVENUE OPERATIONS

nennue from ﬂm with customers

Income from port operations :-
Vessel Related Services 1,039.81 774.08
Cargo Related Services 34,556.02 22,421.09
Storage income 509.34 656.11
Total 36,105.17 23,851.29

The company has assessed and determined the following categories for disaggregation of revenue in addittion to that provided under segment disclosure. Refer Note: 34

X in Lakns

36,105.17 2385129

R mrl'l contracis wil:['l customer

ITotal revenue from operations 36,105.17 23,851.29
In India 36,105.17 23,85129
Outside India ! ’
Total revenue from operations 36,105.17 23,851.29
C=mtract liability is the Company’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration from the customer in advance.

Contract Balances X in Lakhs

Trata Receivables (refer note 9)
Contract Liabilities
Mdiancs from Customers (rafer note 311}

Significant changes in the contract liability balance during the year are as follows:

Opening Balance
Less: Revenue recognized during the year from balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Advance received during the year not recognized as revenue

Closing Balance 1,189.71 |

Trie Company does not have any significant adjustments between the contracted price and revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss account.
The credit period on rendering of services ranges from 1-30 days with or without security

| Mevement in unbiiled ravenus Rin Lakis

Opaning Balance -

{.2s3; Billed during the year . ~
Adil: Unbilled during the year 217 60 -
Closing Balance 217.60 -
MNOTE 23:- OTHER INCOME X In Lalhs|

|Interest Income earned on financial assets

On Bank Deposits 200.61 73.22
Other 22.76 3.03
Qther non-operating income
Financial Gurantee incame (Refer Note: 30) 498.31 32551
Miscellaneous Incomes - 467 64
Total 721.67 869.40
NOTE 24:- OPERATING EXPENSES
Cargo Handling-Expenses 3,263.33 3,253.70
Stores and spares consumed 544.40 232.11
Power and Fuel 2,163 01 1,739.37
Repair and Maintainance 238.50 49.57
Fees to regulatary authority 13,008.03 9,174.81
Total 19,218.27 14,449.57

NOTE 25:- EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES % in Lakhs

Salary , Wages and Bonus 1,090.98
Contribitions to provident and other Fund { refer note 38) 7.96 -
Gratuity and Leave encashment expense (refer Note 38) 5.14 -
Expenses on Employee's Stock Ownership Plan (refer note 39) 403.45 -
Staff Welfare .54 427

Total 836.99 1,095.25




PARADIP EAST QUAY COAL TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2024
NOTE 26:- FINANCE COSTS Xin ilrhs

Imst expense:

On loans from related parties (refer note 30) 8,245.07 8,327.11
[Interest on Lease Obligation 270.08 269.52
Other finance Costs 164.29 163.13
Total 8,679.43 8,759.76

MNOTE 27:- DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES X in Lakhy

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment 83.04 26.37
Depreciation on Right of Use Assets 99,29 99.29
Amortisation on intangible Assets 7.060 01 7.075.28
Total 7.242.34 7,200.94

NOTE 28:- OTHER EXPENSES X in Lakhs

Rent,Rates and Taxes E .
Security Charges 144,70 13128
Remuneration to Auditor (refer Note 35) 7.76 7.06
Legal,Professional and Consultancy Charges 52.66 4.96
Insurance 335.14 324.01
General office expenses and overheads 138.13 98.55
Others 1.48 3.38
Tatal 683.87 569.31
MNOTE 29:- CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

A Cantingent Liabilities {to the extent not provided far) X in Lakhs
(=) Guarantees given

Corporats guarantes given to secure foreign currency bonds of holding company JSW Infrastructure Limited 65,634.24 65,773.52
Total

Notes:

|a) The company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of the above contingent liabilities.

B. Commitments [net of sdvances) Xin Lakhs
Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of cantracts remaianing to be executed on capital account and not providad for 58,66 80248
NOTE 30:- RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES AS PER IND AS 24

Al List of Related Parties

15W infrastructure Limited Holding Company

South West Port Limited Holding Company

sz Paradip Terminal Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary

15w Jaigarh Port Limited Fellow Subsidiary

15\ Dharamtar Port Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary

15w Shipyard Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary

Nandgaan Port Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary

15 Mangalore Container Terminal Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary

15V Jatadhar Marine Servicas Private limitad Fellow Subsidiary

1SW Terminal (Middle East) FZE Fellow Subsidiary

Southern Bulk Terminals Pvt. Ltd. Fellow Subsidiary

Masad Infra Services Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary

Wast Waves Maritime and Allied Services Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary

|Ennora Bulk Terminal Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary

PNP Maritime Services Private Limited (w.e.f 26th December 2023) Fellaw Subsidiary

15W JNPT Liquid Terminal Private Limited (w.e f 13th March 2024} Feflow Subsidiary

13w Techno Projects Management Pvt Ltd Others

Amba River Coke Ltd Others

| IS\W IP Holdings Private Limited Others

Bhushan Power and Steel Ltd. Dthers

Ennore Coal Terminal Pvt. Ltd. Fellow Subsidiary

Mangalore Coal Terminal Pvt Ltd Fellow Subsidiary

1514/ Severfield Structures Limited Others

I5\W Steel Coated Products Limited Others

Jaigarh Digini Rail Ltd Fellow Subsidiary

lindal Steel & Powar Umited Others

i5W/ Steel Limited Others

15W Foundation Others

Inspire Institute of Sport Others

Prasad Uday Rane ‘Whale Time Director

Amit Vallecha CFO

Monika Pareek Ci Secretary




PARADIP EAST QUAY COAL TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2024
8] Transactions with related parties for the year ended: X in Lakhs
ISW Infrastructure Limited
Laan availed B 500.00
Interest on Loan accrued (Gross) 8,243.42 8,209.96
Other Reimbursement (Allocation of Expenses) 127.75 97.69
Corporate guarantee charged by PARADIP EAST QUAY COAL TERMINAL PVT LTD to
15W Infrastructure Limited 498 31 32551
JINDAL STEEL and POWER LIMITED
Purchase of goods and services 0.11 =
South West Port Limited
Loan repaid | 650.00 673.69
Interest on Loan accrued { Gross) | 165 117.15
| 15W Paradip Terminal Private Limited |
Other Reimbursement 30534 973.66
lzigarh Digini Rail Ltd
Other Reimbursement 42.72 66.48
15W Infrastructure Employees Welfare
Reimbursament 108 94
Inspire Institute of Sparts
Aelmbursement 0.01
9,984.94 18,755.65
The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivaient to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through
#xamining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured.
1) The transactions are disclosed under various relationships (i.e. holding company and other related parties) based on the status of related parties on the date of transactions.
2) The Comapny gives or receives trade advances during normal course of business. The transactions against those trade advances are part of above-mentioned purchases or sales and
accordingly, such trade advances have not been shown separately
Lakths

C} Amount due to / from related parties €in

@thers payable ( for Rei sement of Exp )

I5W Infrastructure Limited - 85163
|15W Paradip Terminal Private Limited 37.31 1,10055
Accounts Receivable

|INDAL STEEL and POWER LIMITED 03s

Loan taken

ISW Infrastructure Limited 89,118.00 89,118.00
South West Part Limited . 650 00
Advance / {receivable) towards purchase of goods and service

=W Infrastructure Limited 147 16

89,302.82 91,720.18

Notes :-

1.The company has not paid any sitting fees or dividend during year

Terms and Conditions:
|.oans from related parties:
Tne company had taken loans from related parties for business requirement The loan balances as at Mar 31, 2024 X 89,118 (FY 2023 X 89768) These loans are unsecured in nature.

Interest expense:

Interest is charges on loan from related party as per terms of agreement

NOTE 31:- FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

NOTE 31.1 Capital Risk Management

The Company being in a capital intensive industry, its objective is ta maintain a strong credit rating, healthy capital ratios and establish a capital structure that would maximise the return
to stakeholders through optimum mix of debt and equity.

The Company’s capital requirement is mainly to fund its capacity expansion, repayment of principal and interest on its borrowings and strategic acquisitions. The principal source af
funding of the Company has been, and is expected to continue to be, cash generated from its operations supplemented by funding from bank borrowings and the hoiding Company. The
Company is not subject to any extemally imposed capital requirements.

The Company regularly considers other financing and refinancing opportunities to diversify its debt profile, reduce interest cost and elongate the maturity of its debt portfolio, and

closely monitors its judicious allocation amongst competing capital expansion projects and strategic acquisitions, to capture market opportunities at minimum risk.
The Company monitors its capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt, divided to total equity. Net debt includes, interest bearing loans and barrowings less cash and cash equivalents,

bank balances other than cash and cash T and current invastments.




PARADIP EAST QUAY COAL TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Tin Lakhs

88,329.78

Long-term borrowings 88,165.49
Shnn-t_errn borrowings - 650.00
Less: Cash and cash equivalent {580.01) {1,912.17)
Less: Bank balances ather than cash and cash equival (8,417.75) =
13.332.02 86,903.32 |
|Gearing ratio 3.§ 388

{1} Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Company that are managed as capital.
{li} Debt is defined as long and Short-term borrowings (excluding financial guarantee contracts), as described in notes 15.

NOTE 31.2 Categoaries of financial instruments
The accounting classification of each category of financial instruments, and their carrying amounts, are set out below:

As at 315t March 2024 R in Lakths

Financial assets at amortised cost

Trade Receivables 1,149.54 = - 1,149.54 1,149.54
Other financial assets 131.23 - . 131.23 13123
Cash and bank balances 580.01 - = 580.01 580.01
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 8,417.75 - . 8,417.75 8.417.75
10,278.53 - - 10,278.53 10,278.53
Financial liabilities at amortised cost e
Borrowings 88,329.78 O - 88,329.78 88,329.78
Lease liabilities 2,93073 2,93073 2,930.73
Trade Payables 4,346.43 . - 4,346 43 4,346.43
Other financial liabilities 2,705.68 = * 2,705.68
98,312.63 - B 58,31763 | éﬁ%ﬁ?
As at 31st March 2023 X in Lakhs

Financial assets at amortised cost

Trade Receivables 897.60 - - 897.60 897.60
Other financial assets 535 . . 535 535
Cash and bank balances 191217 - - 191217 191217
Z 01513 - - 281512 281512
Financial liabilities at amortised cost -
Non-Current Borrowings 88815.49 . 88,815 .49 88,815 49
Lease liabilities 2922.77 - - 2,922.77 2,92277
Trade Payables 4716.81 - - 4,716 .81 4,716.81
Other financial liabilities 5149.73 - - 5,149.73 5,149 73
1.01,604. 80 - 1.01,604.80 | 1,01 604.B0
e

Fair value hierarchy

Tiis section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are

(a) recognised and measured at fair value and

{b} measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

Tao provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the company has classified its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under ths
arcounting standard.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cast

Tha carrying amounts of trade receivables, unbilled revenue, trade payables, payable for capital supplies / services, cash and cash equivalents, loan, other financial assets , current
borrawings and other financial liabilities (which are not disclosed below) are considered to be the same as their fair values. due to their short term nature.

Discounted
cash flow an
observable
Future cash
flows are based
Borrowings 88,323.78 88,329.78 88,81549 | 88,81549 3 on terms of
borrowings
discounted ata
rate that
reflects market
risks

Total B8.329.73 8RB.329.78 88.815.49 | B88.815.49




PARADIP EAST QUAY COAL TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2024
NOTE 32:- FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJIECTIVES AND POLICIES

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's foeus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and
seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is not exposed ta
interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at fixed interest rates, Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rate. The borrowings |
af the Company are principally denominated in rupees with fixed rates of interest. In order to optimize the Company’s pasition with regard to interest income and interest expenses and
1o manage the interest rate risk, treasury performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by balancing the proportion of fixed rate financial instruments in its total
partfalio according to the Market.

The following table provides a break-up of the Company’s fixed and floating rate borrowings:

X in Lakhs
Flating rate barrowinga 539,118 00 89,768.00
Fixed rate borrowines | |
Total borrowing | 89,118.00 89,768.00
Total Net barrowing 88,32978 88,815.49
Add: Upfront fees 788.22 95251
Total gross borrawings 89,118.00 89,768.00

interast Rate Sensitivity -

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for financial instruments at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 25 basis point increase or decrease
represents management's assessment of \the reasonably possible change in interest rates,

X in Lakhs

25 hp increase - Decrease in profit 22280
25 bp decrease - Increase in profit | 222.80 l 22442

Credit risk Management:

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities {primarily trade receivables and other financial assets) and from its financing activities, including loans to others, deposits with banks and financiai
institutions and others, foreign exchange transactions and other financial assets,

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating ta customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed hizsed
on an extensive evaluation and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis
for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into hamogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively.

Credit risk from balances with banks, financial institutions and other counter parties is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s poiicy, |
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the |
Management of the Company on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company’s Finance Committee The limits are set to minimise the
cancentratian of risks and therefore mitigates financial loss thraugh counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. The company further mitigates credit risk of counter parties by
aktaining adequate securities including undertaking from creditable parties. The company is exposed to market conditions and counter party credit risk on Loans and (CDs extended from
tirne to time based on limits set by the Finance Committee of the Board of Directors of the company/the board of Directors of the subsidiary entities having regard to various factors
inelugling net-worth of the counterparties. As part of credit risk palicy, guarantees are obtained to secure repayment of these loans and ICDs and interest thereon. These guarantees arz
=valuztad for enforceability under the prevailing faws by the Management of the Campany including assessment by external legal expert, and by assessing financial for the year ended

itarch 31 2024
The following table gives detalls in réspsct of perceéntags of ravenuss ganerated fiom Group compaiies and third party:

Revenue from group companies . . E -
Revenue from third parties 36,10517 | 100% 23 851.29 100%
Total S 36,105.17 | 100%| 23,851.29 100%
Credit Risk Exposure

The allowance for lifetime expected credit loss on customer balances for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 was % NIL Lakhs and X NIL Lakhs respectively.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as we generally invest in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international and domestic
credit rating agencies.

Liquidity risk management:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking facilities and reserve barrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Long-
tarrm borrowings generally mature between one and 10 years. Liquidity is reviewed on a daily basis based on weekly cash flow forecast.

As of March 31, 2024, the Company had a working capital of % 3,869.52 Lakhs As of March 31, 2023, the Company had a working capital of ¥ 1,418.91 Lakhs. The Company is confident
of managing its financial obligation through short term borrowing and liquiduty management.

Tha following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment Years and its non-derivative financial assets,
The tables have been drawn up based an the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables inciuds
both interest and principal cash flows.

Maturity Profile

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31st March, 2024 % |n Lakhs

Financial assets

Trade Receivables 1,149.54 - 1,149.54
Other financial assets 131.23 - - 131,23
Cash and cash equivalents 580.01 - - 580,01
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 8,417.75 - - 8,417.75
Tatal financial assets 10,278.53 - - 10,278.53
Financlal liabilities

Long Term Borrowings - | 8832978 - 88,329.78
Lease Liabilities {3.45) 42.54 2,891.63 2,930.73
Trade Payables 4,346.43 - - 434643
Other Finacial Liability 2,705.68 - - 2,705.68
Total financial Liability 7,048.66 | 88,372.32 2,891.63 98,312.62
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Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Financial assets
Trade Receivables 897.60 -] 897.60
Other financial assets 5.35 - - 535
Cash and cash equivalents 191217 - - 1,912.17
Total financial assets 2,815.12 - - 2,815.12
Financial liabilities
Long Term Borrowings 650 89165.49 88,815.49
Lease Liabilities (7.96} 308.46 2,622.28 2,822.77
Trade Payable 4,716 81 - - 4,716.81
Other Finacial Liability 5,149.73 . - 5,149.73
10,508.58 308.46 90,787.77 | 1.01,604.80

Total financial Liability N

Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves The primary objective of the Campany's Capital Management is to

maximise shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic environment and the requirements of the financial

covenants

11379 | (5,158.34]

Profit/ {Loss) attributable to equity shareholders in Rs. Lakhs

Face value of equity share in Rs. 10.00 10.00

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for basic and diluted EPS 25,76,03,065 25,76,03,065

Effect of Dilution:

Effect of Dilutive common equivalent shares - share option outstanding - -

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for basic and dilluted EPS 25,76,03,065 25,76,03,065

Basic (X/Share) 0.04 (2.00)
0.04 (2.00)

Diluted (%/Sharz]

NOTE 34:- SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company is primary engaged in the one business segment namely developing, operating and maintaining the port services, port related infrastructure development activities and
developing of infrastructure as determined by Chief Operational decision maker, in accordance with IND AS 108 “Operating Segments”

Considering the interrelationship of various activities of the business, the Chief Operational decision maker monitored the operating result of its business segment on overall basis.

Segment performance is evaluated based on prafit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements.

Revenue from Custamer on part service with which the Company has entered into a contract, account for more than 10% of tatal revenue

ADANI ENTERPRISES LIMITED ,282.90 =

KARAM CHAND THAPAR and BROS COAL SALES LTD 4,484 19 9,752.75
CHETTINAD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 6.985.35 3,660.38
NTPC Tamiinadu Energy Company Limited S 3,290 16
TAMILNADU GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION CORPORATION LIMITED 6.963.59 -
SEIL ENERGY INDIA LIMITED 5,631.69 4,608.26
Total 29,347.62 21,311.56

X in Lakhs

O‘I’E 35:- PAYMENT TO STATUTORY AUDITORS {exclusive of tax

Statutory Audit Fees 677 | 550
Tax Audit Fees 1.00 156
Total 7.76 7.06

NOTE 36:- CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
As per section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 corporate social responsibility is not applicable to the company.
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PARADIP EAST QUAY COAL TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2024

NOTE 38:- EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a) Defined contribution plans:
Retirement Benefits in the form of Provident Fund which are defined contribution schemes are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period in

which the contributions to the respective funds accrue as per relevant rules / statutes.
These contributions are made to respective statutory authority.

< in Lakhs

Provident fund {refer note-25)
TOTAL 7.96

(b} Defined benefit ptans:

The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The amount of gratuity shall be payable to an employee on the
termination of employment after rendering continuous service for not less than five years, or on their superannuation or resignation. However, in case of
death of an employee, the minimum period of five years shall not be required. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement / termination is the employee’s
last drawn basic satary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied by the number of years of service completed. The gratuity plan is a

unfunded

1, Privileged Leave {PL) - Unutilised PL balance at the end of the calendar year (31st December) shall be encashed at the prevailing basic pay and no carry

forward is allowed.
2. Contingency Leave (Col) - The existing casual leave and sick leave were clubbed together and shall be called as CoL. The annual credit of a contingency leave
shall be 14 days for plant locations and 8 days for Corporate and other locations. Maximum accumulation of 30 days is allowed and can not be encashed.

These plans typically expose the Company to the following actuarial risks:
Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to government bond yields; if the return
on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently the plan has a retatively balanced investment in equity securities and debt instruments

Interest Risk: A fall in the discount rate, which is linked, to the G-Sec rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate
generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of
the plan participants will increase the plan’s liabilit

Asset Liability matching risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this
generally reduces ALM risk

Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk

Concentration risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default will wipe out all the assets. Although
probability of this is very less as insurance companies have to follow regulatory guidelines

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 31st March , 2024 by
independent actuarial agency. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured
using the projected unit credit method.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the unfunded status and amounts
recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Gratuity {UnFunded):
X in Lakhs

Present Value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year - -
Interest Cost 1.06 -
Current Service Cost 2.81

Past Service Cost - -
Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions 30.85 -
{Liability Transferred Out/ Divestments) (18.49) -

(Gains)/ Losses on Curtailment
(Liabilities Extinguished on Settlement)
(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) (1.79) -
(Benefit Paid From the Fund) -

The Effect Of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates -

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in 0.10 -
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in 5.06 -
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience {0.50) .

slue.qf Benefit Obligation at the End of the year 19.11 -




Amount rac ised in the balance sheet

{Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the year) {19.11)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year =

Funded Status {(Surplus/ (Deficit)) {19.11)

Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet (19.11)

Net Interest Cost for Current year

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the year -

(Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the year) -

Net Liability/{Asset) at the Beginning -

Interest Cost 1.06

{Interest Income}

Net Interest Cost for Current year — 1.06 |

Exy Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Current year o

Current Service Cost 2.81

Net interest Cost 1.06

Past Service Cost

(Expected Contributions by the Employees)

{Gains)/Losses on Curtailments And Settlements

Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Expenses Recognized 3.88

Exp Recognized in the Other Comprel jve Income {QCi) for Current year

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the year 4.66

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest income -

Change in Asset Ceiling

Net (Income)/Expense For the year Recognized in OCI 4.66

Balance Sheet Reconciliation

|Opening Net Liability -

|Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss 3.88

Expenses Recognized in OCI 4.66

Net Liability/(Asset) Transfer In 30.85

Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer Out (18.49)

(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) (1.79)

|{Employer's Contribution) - |

|Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 19.11 !

Other Details

No of Members in Service 15.00

Per Month Salary For Members in Service 5.78

Weighted Average Duration of the Defined Benefit Obligation 13,00 I
15.00

Average Expected Future Service
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) - Total 19.11
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) - Due but Not Paid -
Expected Contribution in the Next Year

Net Interest Cost for Next Year

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the year 19.11
(Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the year) -
Net Liability/(Asset) at the End of the year 19.11
Interest Cost 1.39
(Interest Income) -
Net Interest Cost for Next Year 1.39
Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Next Year
Current Service Cost 3.76
Net Interest Cost 1.39
(Expected Contributions by the Employees) -
5.15

Expenses Recognized




Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments

Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting year) 0.48 -
Between 2 and 5 years 2.90 -
Between 6 and 10 years 6.61 .
11 years and above 35.17

Sensitivity Analysis Method:

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions accurring at the end of the reporting
period, while holding all other assumptions constant.The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be
correlated.Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as
recognised in the balance sheet.There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

Sensitivity Analysis
lIncrease / (decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligation at the end of the year :

19.11
One percentage point increase in discount rate (1.84) -
One percentage point decrease in discount rate 212 -
One percentage point increase in rate of salary Increase 2.07
One percentage point decrease in rate of salary Increase (1.83) -
One percentage point increase in employee turnover rate {0.35) -
One percentage point decrease in employee turnover rate 0.38 -
Principal Actuarial assumptions:
| Discount rate 7.25% 7.48%
Salary escalation 9.00% 6.00%
Mortality rate during employment 2012-14 2012-14
Mortality post retirement rate N.A. N.A.
|Rate of Employee Turnover 4.00% 2.00%

a) The Company expects to contribute X Nil te its gratuity plan for FY 2023-24
b} in assessing the Company’s post retirement liabilities, the Campany monitors mortality assumptions and uses up-to-date mortality tables, the base being the Indian assured lives mortality

{c) Expected return on plan assets is based on expectation of the average long term rate of return expected an investments of the fund during the estimated term of the obligations after
considering several applicable factors such as the composition of plan assets, investment strategy, market scenario, etc

d) The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the

e) The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

Compensated absences
The Company has a policy on compensated absences with provisions of accumulation of cantingency leave and encashment for priviledged leave by the employees during employment or on

separation from the Company due ta death, retirement or resignation. The expected cost of contingency leave is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at the
balance sheet date using projected unit credit method
Assumptions used in accounting for compensated absences:

2 in Lakhs

|

4.69

Present value of unfunded obligation (X in Lakhs)
Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss (X in Lakhs)
Discount Rate (p.a)

_Salary escalation rate (p.a)

7.37% N.A.
6.00% N.A.




PARADIP EAST QUAY TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2024

NOTE 39;- EMPLOYEE SHARE BASED PAYMENT PLAN

Employae Stack Ownership Plan 2016 {ESOP

Plan 2016)

The board of directors of JSW Infrastructure Limited appraved the "Employee Stack Ownership Plan 2016” on March 23, 2016 far issue of stack options to the employee of the Company and its substdiaries
8oard has autharised the Nomination and Remuneration committe for the superintendence of the ESOP Plan

The maximurn value and share options that can be awarded to eligible employees is calculated by reference to certain percentage of individuals salary S0% of the grant wauld vest at the end of the third year
and 50% of the grant would vest at the end of the farth year with a vesting condition that the employee is in continuous employment with the Company till the date of vesting These opticns are equity settled
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A descnption of the method and significant
assumptions used during the year te
estimate the farr value of options including
the fallowing informatian:

The fair
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ted by using Black Schale’s Methos

d The assumptions used in the abave are:
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1st year - 38.33%
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Risk-free interest rate {%}

Zero coupon savereign band
yields were utilized with
maturity equal ta expected
term of the opticn-
1st year - 7.43%

Zera coupan sovereign bond
walds ware wirad with
muatusing eauil 10 exzikcini
term of the option-
3rd year - 6 95%
4th year-7 00%

e coilipun savaralgn bard
il W LEilLsi v
maturity equal to expected
term of the aption-
3rd year - 7.95%
4thyear- 7 99%

Zero caupan sovereign bond
yields were utilized with
maturity equal to expected
term of the option-
3rd year- 4 93%
dthyear-511%

2ero coupan sovereign bond
yields were utilized with
maturity equal to expected
term of the option-
3rd year- 4.93%
athyear-511%

How expected volatility was determined,
including an explanatian of the extent to
which expected volatility was based an
histarical volatility

Whether and how any other features of the
option grant were incorporatad nEa the
measurement of fair value, such as a
market condition

The following factars have been considered:
{a) Share price of companies is similar industry

(b} Exercise prices

{c) Historical volatility of companies is similar industry

{d) Expected option life
{e] Dividend Yield
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Employee Stock Ownership Plan 2021 {(ESOP Plan 2021}

The board of directars of ISW Infrastructure Limited approved the "Employee Stock Ownership Flan 2021 on January 30, 2022 for issue of stack optiens to the employee of the Company and its subsidiaries

and forthe

Board has the

of the ESOP Plan

The maximum value and share options that can be awarded to efigible emplayees is calculated by referance ta certain percentage of individuals salary. 25% of the grant would vest at the end of the first year,
25% of the grant would vest at the end of the second year and 50% of the grant would vest at the end of the third year with a vesting condition that the employee is in continuous employment with the

Cormpany till the date of vesting These options are equity settled
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PARADIP EAST QUAY COAL TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2024

NOTE 40:- Code on Social Security, 2020

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (“the Code”’} received presidential assent on 28th September, 2020. The Ministry of Labour and Employment, released the draft rules
of the Code on 13th November, 2020, however, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not yet been notified. The company will assess and record the
financial impact of the Code in the periad(s) when it becomes effective

NOTE 41:- REALISATION VALUE OF CURRENT ASSETS
In the opinion of Management, the Current Assets comprising of Advances (including capital advance) and other receivables, have value on realisation in the ordinary
course of business at least equal to the amount to which they are stated

NOTE 42:- The Company is yet to receive balance confirmation in respect of certain sundry debtors and advances. The management does not expect any material
difference affecting the current period financial statement due to the same.

NOTE 43:- ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY SCHEDULE III TO THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

i) The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property

ii) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year

iii) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the understanding

that the Intermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company {ultimate beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
iv) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding {whether recorded in

writing or otherwise) that the Company shali:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
v) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the baoks of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year

in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

vi) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of

Layers) Rules, 2017

vii} The Company is not declared willful defaulter by and bank or financials institution or lender during the year.
viii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

ix) Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company {wherever applicable) with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of

accounts

X) The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose far which it was obtained
xi) The Company does not have any transactions with companies which are struck off,

xii) The Company has been maintaining its books of accounts in the SAP which has feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of
each change made in books of account alang with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled, throughout the year as
required by proviso to sub rule (1) of rule 3 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 known as the Companies {Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2021, However, the audit
trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data in the underlying database and in the application when using certain privileged access rights. The Company as per
its policy has not granted privilege access for change to data in the underlying database as evident from the manual log being maintained in this regard and further

privilege access rights to application are restricted only to specific authorised users for which audit trail exists except in certain debugging cases

The Company in the month of March 2024 has also implemented Privileged Access Management tool (PAM), onboarded the SAP database servers on the PAM tool and
the process of monitoring database is currently under testing phase. The PAM is an identity management tool which focuses on the control, monitoring, and protection
of privileged accounts within an organization. The PAM tool saves complete screen video recording sessions of all the admin activities as soon as they authenticate on

the PAM console and connect to the target resources {Servers, Network Devices, Applications and Database) which acts as an audit trail feature

NOTE 44 : Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary, to conform to current period’s classification,

NOTE 45:- The financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 02, 2024.

NOTE 46 : The Company evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the approval of financial statements to

determine the necessity for recognition and/or reporting of subsequent events and transactions in
subsequent events and transactions to be recognized or reported that are not already disclosed.
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